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mas3m 
TO TAKE HOSTAGES 

E ATTACK IN Y W N L  

The Grand Jury cfiixgcs? 

1. From in or ~ ~ Q u K  

includi'ng in or about December 29, 

the jurisdictian of any particular 

December 23, 1998, up to and 

'1998, in an offense begun out of 

Stat$ or dis tr ic t ,  MUSTAFA KAMLL 

"Mustaia Kamel, *' a/k/a "Mosraf a Kame1 Mostafa, " the defendant, and 

others known and unknown, ar  least cme of whom was first brought to 

and arrested in t h e  SauEhern D $ s t r i c t ;  af New Yark, unhwful ly  and 

knowingly combined, conspired, confederared and agreed together and 

with each other to v i d a z e  Section 1203 of Tttlr 18, united-States 

-Code. 

2. It was a part  a i d  en object  of t h e  conspiracy that 

MUSTAFA M E L  M ~ ~ A F A ,  the daftr,=lar.=, afid others known and unknown, 



would and did, i n s i d e  and outs ide  t h e  United S t a t e s ,  unlawfully and 
.- 

knowingly seize and d e t a i n  and th rea t en  t o  k i l l ,  t o  i n j u r e ,  and t o  

continue t o  de t a in  o t h i r  persons, ineluding two U.S. nat ionals ,  i n  

order t o  compel a rhird person and a governmental organizat ion,  t o  

w i t ,  t h e  government of  Yemen, t o  do and abs t a in  from doing any ac t  

a s  an e x p l i c i t  and i m p l i c i t  .- condi t ion f o r  t h e  reLease of t he  

persons detained.  

Overt A c t s  

3 .  m f urthexance of s a i d  conspiracy, and t o  effect t h e  

i l l e g a l  ob j ec t  t h e r e o f ,  t h e  following overtr a c t s ,  among others ,  

were committed: 

a .  I n  o r  about l a t e  1998, MUSTAEA MUSTAFA, 

t h e  defendant, provided a co-conspirator no t  named as a defendant 

herein (Yo-Conspirator I") ,  t h e  leader  of t he  Abyan f ac t ion  of t h e  

Islamic Army of Aden, and a group of co-conspirators not named a s  

defendants he re in  ( l iereafter ,  the "hostage-takers") with a 

s a t e l l i t e  phone. 

b. On o r  abaut December 27, 1998, MUSTAFA KAMEZ 

MOSTAFA, t h e  defendant, received th ree  t e l e p h o m  calls a t  his home 

from t h e  s a t e l l i t e  phone h e  had previously  provided t o  t h e  hostage- 

t akers .  

c. On'or about December 28, 1998, t h e  hostage- 

. takers  stormed a caravan of sporr: u t i l i r y  vehicles  dar ry ing  s ix teen  

t o u r i s t s  and took t h e  t o u r i s t s  hostage by use of fo rce .  



d. On or about December 28, 1998, MUSTAFA KAMEL - 
MUSTAFA, the defendant, spoke to Co-Conspirator 1 on the satellite 

phone after the hostage-taking was already underway. During that 

talephone call, MClSTAFA KAMEL MDSTAFA, the defendant, agreed to act 

as an intermediary for Co-Conspirator 1 and the hostage-takers, and . 
gave Co-Conspixator 1 cerfain .- advice related to the hostage-taking. 

e. On or about December 29, 1998, after the 

hostage-taking was underway, MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, the defendant, 

ordered five hundred British pounds worth of additional airtime for 

the satellite phone being used by the hostage-takers. 

f .  On or about December: 29, 1998, the Yemeni 

. military attempted to rescue the hostages. During the rescue 

attempt, the hostage-takers used the hostages as human shields and - 
attempted to fight oif the yemini military. Although the military 

ultimately overpowered the hostage-takers, during the rescue 

attempt four .of the 'hostages were killed and several others 

wounded. 

(Title 18, United Stares Code, Section 1203.) 

pmT TRO 

HOSTAGE-TAKING 
(THE ATTACK IN Y E M E U  

The Grand Jury further charges: 

4. From in or about December 23, 1998, up to and 

including in or about December 29, 1998, in an offense begun out of - 
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. . 
rhe j u r i s d i c t i o n  o f  any p a r t i c u l a r  S t a t e  o r  d i s t r i c t ,  MDSTAFA KAMEL - 
MUSTAFA, a/k/a "Abu Hamza," a/k/a "Abu Hamza al-Masri," a/k/a 

"Mustaf a Kamel, a/k/a' "Mostaf a Kamel Mostafa, " t h e  defendant, and 

o thers  known and unknown, a t  l e a s t  one of whom was first brought t o  

and a r r e s t e d  i n  t h e  Southern District of New York,.unlawfully and 

knowingly, i n s i d e  and ou ts ide  - t h e  United Sta t e s ,  d id  s e i z e  and 

de ta in  and t h r e a t e n  t o  k i l l ,  t o  i n ju re ,  and t o  continue t o  deta in  

o ther  persons, inc lud ing  two U.S. nat iona ls ,  i n  order  t o  compel a 

t h i r d  person and a 'governmental organization,  to w i t ,  the 

government of Yerpen, t o  do and abs ta in  from doing any a c t  as an 

e x p l i c i t  and implicit condi t ion f o r  t h e  r e l e a s e  of t h e  persons 

detained.  

( T i t l e  18,  Uniced S ta t ea  Code, Sections 1203 and 2.) - 

CQNSP~RACY TO movrm RND CONCEAL 
MATERIAL SUPPORT AND RESOURCES TO TERRORISTS 

The Grand Jury f u r t h e r  charges: 

5 .  From i n  o r  about October 1999, up t o  and including 

i n  o r  about e a r l y  2000, i n  t h e  Southern District of N e w  York and 

elsewhere, MlSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, a/k/a "Abu Hamza," a/k/a,, "Abu 

Hamza al-Masri, a l k l a  "Mustafa Kamel, " ?/k/a "Mostafa Kamel 

Mostafa," t h e  defendant, and o thers  known and unknown, a t  l e a s t  one 

o f  whom was f i r s t  .brought t o  and-ar res ted  i n  t h e  Southern D i s t r i c t  



. . 
of New York, unlawfully and knowingly combined, conspired, - 
confederated and agreed together  and with each o the r  t o  v io l a t e  

Section 2339A cf 'Title' 10, United Sta tes  Code. 

6. It was a p a r t  and an object  of t h e  conspiracy t h a t  

MUSTAFA XAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, and o the r s  known and unknoun, 

would and did ,  wi thin  t h e  United .- Sta tes ,  provide mater ia l  support 

and resources and conceal and disguise  t h e  nature ,  location, 

source, and ownership of ma te r i a l  support and resources,  knowing 

and intending t h a t  they'were t o  be used i n  p repara t ion  for, and i n  

carrying oe t ,  a v i o l a t i o n  of Section 956 of Title 18, United S ta tes  

Code (conspiring t o  ki l l ,  kidnap, maim, and. injure persons and t o  

damage and des t roy  proper ty  i n  a fo re ign  country).  and i n  

preparation fo r ,  and i n  carrying out, t he  concealment and an escape - 
from t h e  conrmission of such v io l a t i on ,  

Overt Acts 

7. I n  fur therance of s a i d  conspir.acy, and t o  ef f a c t  the  

i l l e g a l  ob jec t  t he reo f ,  t h e  following over t  ac t s ,  among others, 

were committed i n  t h e  Southern Di s t r i c t  of New York and elsewhere: 

a .  On severa l  occasions i n  o r  about October,l999, 

MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, d iscussed with a co- 

conspirator not  named a s  a defendant herein ('To-conspirator 2"). 

a U.S. c i t i z e n ,  t h e  l r e a r i o n  of a jihad t r a i n i n g  camp i n  Bly, 

.Oregon. 



. . 
b. On or about October 25, 1999, Co-Conspirator 2 . 

communicated to MUSTAFA KAMEL WSTAFA, the defendant, that he and 

other co-conspirators not named as defendants herein were stock- 

piling weapons and munition in the United States. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.) 

.. 
COUNT POUR 

PROVIDING AND CONCEALING 
MATERIAL SUPPORT AND RESOURCES TO TERRORISTS 

(THE BLY. OREGON JIHAD TRAINING W P L  

The G r a d  Jury further charges: 

8 .  From in or about October 1999, up to and including 

in or about early 2000, in the 'Southern District of New York and 

elsewhere, MUSTAE'A M L  MUSTAFA, a/k/a *Abu Hamza, " a/k/a "Abu 

Hamza al-Masci," a/k/a "Mustafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kame1 

Mostafa'," the defendant, and others known and unknown, at least one 

of whom.was first brought to and arrested in the Southern.District 

of New York, within the Unifed States, provided material support 

and resources and concealed and disguised the nature, location, 

source, and ownership of material support and resources, knowing 

and intending that they were to be used in preparation for, and in 

carrying out, a violation of Secrion 956 of Title 18, United States 

Code (conspiring to k i l l ,  kidnap, maim, and injure persons and to 

damage and destroy properzy in a foreign country), and in 



preparat ion for, and i n  carrying cut ,  the  concealment and an escape 
, 

Erom the ccmmission of such v io la t ion .  

(T i t l e  18, C7nitt.d States Code, Sections 2339A and 2 . )  

c o r n  FIvE 

CONSPIRACY TO PROVIDE MATERIAL SUPPORT 
AND RESOURCES TO A FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION 

LTHE BLY . OREGON JIWAD T F S I N I N G  CAMP L 

The Grand Jury f u r t h e r  charges! 

9. From i n  or about October 1999, up ta and including 

i n  o r  about early 2000, i n  t h e  Southern-Dis t r ic t  of New York and 

elsewhere, MUSTAFA ICAMEL MUSTAFA, a/k/a 'Abu Hmza," a/k/a "Abu 

Hamza al-Masrl," afk/a "Mustafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa K a m e 1  

Mostafa," the defendant, and'others known and unknown, a t  l e a s t  one 

of whom was first brought t o  and a r res ted  i n  t h e  Southern District 

af N e w  York, unlawfully and knowingly combined, conspired, 

confederated and agreed together  and ,with each o ther  t o  v io l a t e  

Section 23398 of T i r l e  18. U n i ~ e d  S ta tes  Code. 

1 0 .  Ic was a p a r t  and a n  objecc of t h e  conspiracy chat 

MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, and o the r s  known and unknown, 

would and did,  w i t h i n  t h e  United S t a t e s  and subject  t o  t h e  

j u r i sd i c t i on  of t he  Unized S=a:es, knowingly provide material  

support and resources  ic a foreign t e r r o r i s t  prganizacion, t o  w i t ,  

,a t e r r o r i s t  organizatior.  known as  "a? Qaeda" and l e d  by Usama B i n  

Laden, which was desrgna:ed by the Secretary of S t a t e  as a fare ign 



. . 

terrorist organization on October 8, 1999, pursuant to Section 219 - 
of the Immigration and Nationality Act, and was redesignated as 

such on or about October 5, 2001, and October 2, 2003. 

overt Acts 

11. In furtherance of said conspiracy, and to effect the 

illegal object thereof, . t h e  .. following overt acts, among others, 

were cbmmitted in the Southern District of New York and elsewhere: 

a. On or about October 25, 1999, MUSTAFA lCAMEL 

MUSTAFA, the defendant, 'received a facsimile proposal regarding the 

creation of a j i had  training camp in Bly, Oregon. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 2339B (a) (1) .) 

PROVIDING MATEFtIAL SUPPORT 
AND RESOURCES TO A FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION 

JTHE BLY. OREGON JIHAD TRAINTNG cmel 

The Grand ~ u r y  further charges: 

12. From in or about Ocrober 1999, up to and including 

in or about early 2000, in t h e  Southern District of New York and 

elsewhere, MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, a/k/a "Abu Hamza," a/k/a "Abu 

Hamza al-Masri," a/k/a "Muscafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kamel 

Mostafa," the defendant, and others known and unknown, at least one 

of whom was first broug'ht to and arrested in the Southern District 

of New York, within the United States and subject to t h e  

jurisdiction of the United Scares, unlawfully and knowingly did 



provide, and at tempt t o  provide, mate r ia l  support and resources t o  - 
a fore ign  t e r r o r i s t  oxganization,  t o  w i t ,  a t e r r o r i s t  organization 

known as  "a1 Qaeda" 'and led by Usama Bin Laden, which was 

designated by t h e  Sec re t a ry  of  S t a t e  as a foreign t e r r o r i s t  

organizat ion on October 8 ,  1999, pursuant t o  Section 219 of the 

Tmmigxation and N a t i o n a l i t y  A c t ,  - and was redesignated as such on o r  

about October 5, 2001, and October 2, 2003. 

( T i t l e  10, United S t a t e s  Code, Sections 23398 ( a )  (1) and 2.) 

CONSPIRACY TO PROVIDE AND CONCEXJ 
MATERIAL SUPPORT AND RESOURCES TO TERRORISTS 
JFACILI'PATING VIOLENT J'IHAD I N  AFGHANISTANL 

The Grand - Ju ry  f u r t h a r  charges: 

13. From i n  o r  aboui June 2000, up t o  and i n d u d i n g  on 

or about December 19, 2001, i n  t h e  Soutbern District of New York 

and elsewhere,' MOSTAFA ~ R M E L  MUSTAFA, a/k/a *Abu Hamza," a /k/a  "Abu 

Hamza al-Masri," aa/k/ "Mustafa Karnel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kame1 

Mostafa, " t h e  defendanr, and azhers known and unknown, a t  l e a s t  one 

of whom was first brought  t o  and arresced i n  t he  Southern District 

af N e w  York, unlawful ly  and knowingly combitied, conspired, 

confederated and agreed together  and with each ocher t o  v i o l a t e  

Sect ion 2339A of ~ i t l e ' l e .  h i r e d  S t a t e s  Code. 

14. It was a p a r t  and an object  of t h e  conspiracy t h a t  

MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendanr, and o thers  known and unknown, 



would and d i d  provide meter ia l  support and resources  and conceal -- 
and d i sgu ise  t h e  nature ,  locat ion,  source, and ownership of 

mater ia l  support  and resources, knowing and intending t h a t  they 

were t o  be  used i n  preparation for ,  and i n  carrying out, a  

v io l a t i on  of Sec t ion  956 of T i t l e  18, Unite$ S t a t e s  Code 

(conspiring t o  k i l l ,  kidnap, . - maim, and i n j u r e  persons and t o  damage 

and destroy proper ty  i n  a foreign country) ,  and i n  preparat ion for ,  

and i n  ca r ry ing  out, t h e  concealment and an escape from the  

commission of such v io l a t i on .  

Overt Acts 

15. I n  fur therance of s a id  conspiracy, and to e f f e c t  

t he  illegal ob jec t  t he reo f ,  t h e  following over t  a c t s ,  among others,  

were committed i n  t h e  Southern District of New York and elsewhere: - 
a. I n  o r  about June 2000, Co-Conspirator 2 

t rave led  from London, England, t o  N e w  York, i n  part, t o  r a i s e  money 

f o r  t h e  Finsbury Park Mosque's hijrah fund from worshipers a t  Local 

mosques. During this t r i p ,  Co-Conspirator 2 t r ave l ed  through 

Manhattan, New York, on h i s  way r o  attempt t o  c o l l e c t  money a t  a 

mosque i n  Long I s land ,  New York. The money co l lec ted  by Co- 

conspira tor  2 dur ing  t h i s  t r i p  was added t o  t h e  Finsbury Park 

Mosque's h i j r a h  fund when Co-Conspirator 2 rezurned t o  London. 

b. In '  o r  about November 2000, MUSTAFA KAMZL 

.MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant,  asked Co-Conspirator 2, a O.S. c i t i zen ,  t o  

escor t  another co-conspirator not- named a s  a defendant herein ('Co- 



. . 
Conspirator 3 " ) ,  who was one of the defendant's followers, from - 
London, England, to a jihad training camp in Afghanistan operated 

by a 'front-line cormaandar." 

c. In or about November 2000, Co-Conspirator 2 

took money out of the Finsbury Park Mosque's hijrah hnd,  which r a s  

to be used for certain travel . - expenses relating t~ the trip to 

Afghanistan with Co-Conspirator 3. 

d. In ,or about November 2000, WSTAFA KAMEL 

MUSTAFA, the defendant,'introduced Co-conspirator 2 to another co- 

conspirator not named as a defendant herein (Yo-Conspirator 4 " )  

for purposes of arranging safehouses and lodging in Pakistan and 

safe passage and transportation into Afghanistan. 

e. In or about November 2000, Co-Conspirator 2 and - 
Co-Conspirator 3 traveled together from London, England, to 

Pakistan. Both men separately entered Afghanistan shortly 

thereafter. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 2339A.l 

(FACILITRTING VIOLENT JIXAb IN AFGHAN1STAN)- 

The Grand Juky furrher chargas: . 
16. From in or about June 2'000, up to and including on 

or about December 19, 2001, in the Southem District of New York 



and elsewhere, MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAPA, a/k/a "Abu Wafiza, " a/k/a "Abu 

Hamza al-Masri," a/k/a "Mustafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kame1 

Mostafa," the defendant, and othere known and unknown, at least one 

of whom was first brought to and arrested in the Southern District 

o f  New York, provided material support aid resources and concealed 

and disguised the narure, .- location, source, and ownership of 

material support and resources, knowing and intending that they 

were to be used in preparation for, and in carrying out, a 

violation of Section' 956 of Title 18, United States Code 
, 

(conspiring to kill, kidnap, maim, and injure persons and to damage 

and destroy property in a foreign country), and in preparation for, 

and in carrying out, the concealment and an escape from the 

commission of such violation. 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2339A and 2.) 

CONSPIRACY TO PROVXDE MATERIAL SUPPORT 
AND RESOURCES TO A FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION 

CFACILITATING VIOLENT JIWlD IN AFGHANISTAN) 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

17. From' in or ,about June 2000, up to and including on 

or about December 19, 2001, i n  the Southern District: of New York 

and elsewhere, MUSTAFA 'KAMEL MUSTAFA, a/k/a "+I Hamza, " a/k/a "Abu 
Hamza al-Masri," a/k/a "Mustafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kamel 

Mostafa," the defendant, and ochers known and unknown, a t  least one 



. . 
of whom was first brought to and arrested in the Southern District 

of New York, uniawfuiiy and knowingiy combined, conspireti, 

confederated and agreed together and wi th  each other to violate 

Section 23398 of Title 18, Onited States Code. 

18. It was a part and an object of the conspiracy that 

MUSTAE'A KAMEL MUSTAFA, the defendant, ... and others known and unknouh, 

would 2nd did, within the Uniced Statea and subject to the 

jurisdiction of the United States, knowingly provide material 

support and resources ta a foreign rerrorist organization, to wit, 

a terrorist organization known as "a1 Qaeda" an$ led by Usama Bin 

Laden, which was designaced by the Secretary. of State as a foreign 

terrorist organization on October 8. 1999, pursuant to Section 219 

of the Immigration and Nationality Act, and was redesignated as 

such on or abour October 5, 2001, and October 2, 2003. 

Ove rt Acts 

19. In furtherance of said cpnspiracy, and to effect the 

illegal object thereof, the following overc acts, among others, 

were committed in the Southern D i s c r i c c  of New York and elsewhere: 

a. In or dbour. March or April 2001, MUSTAFA KAMEL 

MUSTAFA, the defendant, sent direct ions to Co-Conspiraror 3, who 

was in Afghanistan a; the ::zie, K O  seek our the "front-line 

commander" in Afghanisfa:: who was expecting Co-Conspira~or '3. 

(Title 18, U:.ited 5:a:es Code, Seztion 2339B (a) (1). ) 



camp m . 
PROVIDING MATERIAL SiEIPPOKT ASP rSESClURCES 

TO A FORESGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION 
JFACILITATING VIOLENT JIHAD IN A F G B A N I S T a  

The Grand Jury further charges: 

20. From in or about ~une'2000, up to and including on 

or about December 19, 2001, .- in the southern District of New York 
and elsewhere, MUSTAFA KAMEL MUSTAFA, a/k/a "Abu Hamza," a/k/a "Abu 

Hamza al-Masri, " a/k/a "Mustaf a Kamel, " a/k/a "Mostafa Kamel 

Mostafa," the defendant, and others known and unknown, at least one 

of whom was first brought to and arrested in the.Southern District 

of New York, within the United States land subject co the 

jurisdiction of the United States, knowingly provided .material 

support and resourcf?s to a foreign terrorist organization, to wit, 

a terrorist organization known as -81 Qaeda" and led by ~ s a &  Bin 

Laden, trhich was designaced by the Secretary of State as a foreign 

terrorisr arganization'on October 8 ,  1999, pursuant to Section 219 

of the Inmigration and Nationality Act, and was redesignated as 

such on or about October 5, 2001, and October 2, 2003. 

(Title 18, United. Srates Code, Sections 2339B(a1 [l) and 2.) 



- 
CONSPIRACY TO SUPPLY GOODS 

ANIXSERVICES TO FIB TALIBAN 
fIEEPA VIOLATIONSL 

The Grand Jury further charges: 

21. On July 4, 1999, President of the United States. 

William J. Clinton declared a-national emergency in Executive Order 

13129 to deal with the threat posed by a1 Qaeda and the Taliban, 

Afghanistan's dominant political force at that time. Specifically, 

the President found that: 

The actions and policies of the Taliban in Afghanistan, 
in allowing terxitory under its control in Afghanistan to 
be used as a safe haven and base of opecations for Usama 
bin Laden and the [a1 Qaeda] organization. who have 
committed and threaten zo continue to Commit acts of 
violence against the United Szates and its nationals, 
constitute an unusual and extzaordinary threat to the 
national secuiity and foreign policy of the . United 
States. 

22. In his Execuzive Order 13129, the President 

prohibited, among other things, United States persons from making 

or receiving any contribution of funds, goods, or services to or 

for the benefit of the Taliban, and from supplying, directly or 

indirectly, any goods, sof tuare, technology, or services to the 

Taliban or r o  %he territory of Afghanistan controlled by the 

Taliban. 

23. On June 30, 2000, the national .emergency with 

-respect to the Taliban was conrinued. One year later, the national 

emergency was again continued, pursuant to a finding by President 

. 
15 



- * 

of t h e  United S t a t e s  George W.'Bush t h a t  " [ t l h e  Taliban continues 
P 

t o  allow t e r r i t o r y  under i ts cont ro l  i n  Afghanistan t o  be used as 

a safe haven and base  df opexations f o r  Usama b i n  Laden and t h e  [ a l  

Qaeda] o rganiza t ion  who have committed and thkeaten t o  continue t o  

commit acts of violence aga ins t  t he  United S.tates and i t s  

na t iona ls .  " -- 
24.  From i n  o r  about t h e  Spring of 2000, up t o  and 

including i n  o r  aboui: l a t e  2001, i n  t h e  Southern District of New 

York and elsewhere, MUSTAFA W E L  MUSTAFA, a/k/a "Abu Hamza, " a/k/a 

'Abu Hamza al-Masri," a /k/a  "Mustafa Kamel," a/k/a "Mostafa Kame1 

Mostafa," t h e  defendant, and o thers  knourp and unknown, at l ease  one 

01 whom was first brought t o  and a r res ted  i n  the southern District 

of N e w  York, unlawfully - and knowingly combined, conspired, 

confederated and agreed toge ther  and with each o the r  t o  v i o l a t e  . 

Sect iaa  1705(b) of T i t l e  50, 'United S t a t e s  Code, and Sections 

545.204 and 545.206(b)' of T i t l e  31, Code of Federal Regulations. 

25.  It was a pa r t  and an ob jec t  of t h e  conspiracy t h a t  

MUSTAFA XAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, and o thers  known and unknown, 

d i d  unlawfully and knowingly v io l a t a  a regula t ion  issued under 

Chapter 35 of Title 50, United S ta tes  Code, i n  t h a t  a t  l e a s t  one 

United S t a t e s  person, along with others known and unknown,, d id  

conspire t o  unlawfully supply funds, goods,. and se rv ices  t o  t he  

Taliban, t o  t he  t e r r i t o r y  of Afghanistan c m t r o l l e d  by t h e  Taliban, 

and t o  persons whose proper ty-and  i n t e r e s t s  i n  property were 

- 
16 



blocked pursuant t o  T i t l e  31, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 
* 

545.201. 

overr A c t s  

2 6 .  In  fur therance of said conspiracy, and t o  e f f e c t  t h e  

i l l e g a l  object  thereof ,  t h e  following ove r t  ac t s ,  among orhers, 

were committed i n  t h e  Southern D i s t r i c t  of New York and elsewhere: . ,. 
a.  From i n  o r  about the Spring of 2000, up t o  and 

including a t  l e a s t  September 6, 2001, MUSTAFA KRMEL MUSTAFA, t he  

defendant, posted messages on t h e  Supporters of  Shariah ("SOS") 
, 

website, with t h e  assistance of Co-Conspirator 2, a U.S: c i t i z e n ,  

urging the  defendant ' s  fol lowers t o  donate money, goods, and 

se rv ices  t o  Taliban-sponsored programs i n  the a rea  of Afghanistan 

conrrolled by the Taliban. - 
b. I n  or about l a t e  2000, a t  t h e  request  of 

MUSTAFA'KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, Co-Conspirator 2 agreed t o  

de l ive r  CO-conspirator 3, a person des i r ing  to undergo violent  

j ihad  t r a in ing ,  t o  an ind iv idua l  located i n  t h e  t e r r i t o r y  of 

Afghanistan con t ro l l ed  by  t he  Taliban. 

c. In  o r  about l a t e  2000, a t  the roquest of 

MUSTAFA KWEZ MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, Co-Conspirator 2 delivered 

compact d i s c s  containing t h e  defendant's s tatements t o  ce r t a in  

i n d i d d u a l s  loca ted  i n ' r h e  t e r r i t o r y  of Afghanistan cont ro l led  by 

the Taliban. 



d. From i n  as about March 2001, up t o  and 

ineluding a t  l e a s t  September 6, 2001, MUSTAE'A KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  

defendant, and Co-Conspiraror 2 discussed p l a n s  t o  e s t a b l i s h  a 

computer l a b  i n  Afghanistan. During these discuss ions ,  MDSTAFA 

KAMEL MUSTAFA, t h e  defendant, stated t h k  he wanted the  computer 

lab t o  be loca ted  i n  Kandahar and t a  s e rv i ce  Tal&ban o f f i c i a l s  and, 

the Afghan i  people loca ted  in  Kandahar, which was then cont ro l led  

by the  Taliban.  

e. On or about September 6, 2001, Co-Conspirator 

2 departed Landon, England for Pakistan,  and then Afghanistan. 

Prior t o  his depar ture ,  MUSTAFA KAWL MuSTAFA, the defendant, gave 

Co-Conspirator 2 approximately six thousand ~ r i t i s h  pounds which 

were, i n  par t ,  t o  be used t o  lease a bui lding which would house t he  - 
computer l a b  and t o  pay f o r  some of the s t a r t  up expenses f o r  t h e  

computer lab. 

(Title 18, United S t a t e s  Code, Sect ion 371; 
T i t l e  50, uni ted States Code, Section 1705(bJ;  and 

T i z l e  31 Code'oi? Federal Regulations, 
Sections 545.204 and 54 
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( T i t l e  18, U n i t e d  States Code, 
sections-a, 372, 1203, 2339A, 

and 2339B, and T i t l e  50, 
United StateB Code, Section 1705(b)l 

IJAm N. mLLm 
Uiaited States Attorney. 

Foreperson. 


